










 

 

 

Date: June 16, 2014 

 

To:  

 

Norman Election Commission 

Through: Jeff Harley Bryant, City Attorney 

 

From: 

 

Kristina L. Bell, Assistant City Attorney 

Subject:  

 

Response to March 24, 2014, Complaint 

Background 

 

 On March 24, 2014, William Hickman, challenger for the Ward 4 City Council 

seat, filed a complaint with the Norman Election Commission (“NEC”) against 

incumbent Councilmember Greg Jungman claiming that he “used his office to endorse 

his candidacy by using publicly funded, public property (emails) to promote his 

campaign for office.  Attached are emails - one from the Ward 4 public account, which 

contains campaign information and was sent using private emails received for public 

purpose.”  The NEC has requested a formal legal opinion regarding the complaint. 

 

Discussion 

 

 Chapter 7.5 of the Norman City Code addresses Municipal Elections.  Article II 

of that Chapter is entitled, “Campaign Disclosures of Contributors, Contributions, and 

Expenditures.”  The duties of the NEC are set out in § 7.5-26 as follows: 

 

  Sec. 7.5-26. – Duties of the Norman Election Commission. 

 

   In addition to any other duties designated by the terms of  

  this article, the Norman Election Commission shall: 

 

(1) Enforce the provisions of this article;  

 

(2) Cooperate with the City Clerk in preparing the 

design and content of appropriate forms for 

campaign statements required by this article;  

 

(3) Cooperate with the City Clerk in the preparation 

and publication of written instructions explaining 

the duties of person and committees under this 

article;  

 

(4)  Determine whether the statements required to be 

filed under this article and also the statements 

required to be filed by the State Statute in the 

Office of the City Clerk have been properly filed;  
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(5) To review, compare and examine for 

inconsistencies or other deficiencies all statements 

filed in the Office of the City Clerk, including 

forms required to be filed under this article and 

also State forms required to be filed in the Office 

of the City Clerk by the applicable State Statutes;  

 

(6)  Investigate any substantial discrepancy, including, 

 but not limited to, total expenditures listed in 

 campaign statements filed before the election and 

 expenditures listed in statements filed after the 

 election;  

 

(7)  Make a public report to the City Council within 

forty (40) days after the Municipal Election and 

ninety (90) days after the final election, including, 

but not limited to, ongoing investigations,       

violations of this article and violations of the 

election laws of the State of Oklahoma;  

 

(8) Recommend or advise the City Council on      

possible changes as needed to this article;  

 

(9) Make an effort to inform the public about the 

importance of reporting all contributions and 

expenditures by candidates for local offices as 

well as the political action committees (PACs) 

involved in a given campaign. 

 

 Section 7.5-26(a)(1) grants the NEC the authority to “[e]nforce the provisions of 

this article.”  Likewise, § 7.5-27(a) provides the procedure for filing and responding to a 

“violation of any portion of this article.”    

 

 It appears that the gist of Mr. Hickman’s complaint as it relates to Chapter 7.5 of 

the Norman City Code is that City resources were used to further Councilmember 

Jungman’s campaign for re-election to the Ward 4 City Council seat that perhaps were 

not included in campaign expenditure reports required by that Chapter of the City Code.  

It has been confirmed with Councilmember Jungman and through review of Ward 4       

e-mails contained on the City of Norman network that City resources were not used to 

disseminate Councilmember Jungman’s Ward 4 campaign materials.   

 

Recommendation 

 

 Having found no factual basis for a violation of Chapter 7.5 of the City Code as 

alleged in Mr. Hickman’s complaint, it is recommended that this complaint, as it relates 

to possible violations of Chapter 7.5, be closed. 






